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1. Name_________________
historic PICKERING FARM

and/or common PICKERING FARM HORSE STABLES

2. Location

street & number 21809 S.E. 56th not for publication

city, town Issaquah „ , The Honorable 
vicinity of____congressional district 3rd - Q0 n Banker

state Washington code 053 county King code 033

3. Classification
Category Ownership

district public
X building(s) X private

structure both
site Public Acquisition
object in process

being considered
n/a

Status
occupied

X unoccupied 
work in progress

Accessible
J( _ yes: restricted 

yes: unrestricted
no

Present Use
X agriculture 

commercial
educational
entertainment
government
industrial
military

museum
park
private residence
religious
scientific
transportation
other:

4. Owner of Property

name Eugene Ekblad

street & number 2220 81 st Street SE

city,town Mercer Island vicinity of state Washington 98040

5. Location of Legal Description

courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. KING ADMINISTRATION BUILDING

street & number 500-4th Avenue

city, town
Seattle

state Washington 98104

6. Representation in Existing Surveys
WASHINGTON STATE CULTURAL RESOURCES SURVEY: 

title___KING COUNTY_________________has this property been determined elegible? yes no

date December 30, 1977 . federal _)(_ state _X_ county local

depository for survey records Office of Archaeology and Historic Preservation_________ 

city.town 111 West 21st Street, Olympia state Washington 98504



7. Description

Condition
excellent

^-good
A fair

Check one
deteriorated unaltered
ruins * altered
unexposed

Check one
X original site 

moved date

Describe the present and original (if known] physical appearance

The Pickering Farm is located in the Sammamish Valley, thirteen miles east of Seattle, 
Washington, at the foothills of the Cascade Mountains. A Victorian-detailed barn, four 
related buildings and eighty-six acres of open pasture land are the only remaining working 
parts of what was once the four hundred and ten acre Pickering Brothers Dairy Farm.
The Hay Barn
The present barn is actually two attached buildings. A tall hay barn with a high-pitched 
gable roof is the original building, constructed about 1890. In 1906, a one-story cow 
barn with a low-pitched gable roof was built eighteen feet to the south of the first barn. 
The space between the two buildings is roofed over and partially enclosed.

The center section of the hay barn, enclosing the haymow, is thirty feet wide, seventy-eight 
feet long, and approximately forty-five feet high at the ridge. Lean-to's extend the 
length of the barn on its east and west sides, the western one being wider and higher. 
The width of the barn, including the lean-to's, is seventy-two feet.

The siding of the hay barn is board and batten and is attached to the framing with cut nails, 
The roof of the western lean-to has a corrugated metal covering. All other roof surfaces 
are covered with wood shingles. Interesting exterior details include boxed-in eaves and 
verges and a large ventilation cupola at the center of the main roof ridge. The square 
cupola has a cross gable roof and on each side, two, round-arched, louvered openings 
with a crescent moon cut-off above them.

All of the original casement and double-hung sashes have been removed. The original 
double sliding doors have also been removed though the steel tracks are still attached 
to the lean-to's.

The hay barn foundation is post and concrete pier. The post and beam, sawn-timber 
framing is traditional, including precisely fitted mortise-and-tenon joints held with 
mortise pins. The posts and beams are approximately ten inches square. There are five 
bents, or post and crossbeam units, spaced eighteen feet apart along the length of the 
haymow. Each bent is stiffened by diagonal braces, also held with mortise pins.

An unusual feature of the framing is a system of iron tension rods. The rods are strung 
in pairs across the width of the haymow, eight inches above the center crossbeam and the 
beam either side of it. The outer ends of each pair are bolted through the posts which 
extend a foot above the tops of the crossbeams. The inner ends of each pair are joined 
in common to a small iron link or ring. These rods are not adjustable. Aside from the 
crossbeams and tension rods, the haymow is open from the ground floor to the rafters.

Just below the gable ridge, suspended from a wooden bracing arrangement, is a steel, 
hayfork carrier track. It traverses the entire length of the haymow and extends beyond the 
walls of the north and south gables. In conjunction with a system of pulleys, horse-drawn 
cables and a hayfork lift, loose hay, piled in a wagon outside, was hoisted through the 
hay door in the north gable, pulled along the carrier track, and dropped into the haymow.
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The Cow Barn
The cow barn, built in 1906, measures forty by one-hundred and fifty feet with a sixteen-foot 
wide milking parlor projecting twenty-eight feet from the center of the east side.

The siding of the barn is primarily board and batten with some shiplap sections on the south 
end and on the milking parlor wing. The roofing material is wood shingles. Three louvered 
cupolas with steep pyramidal roofs are evenly spaced along the ridge of the barn roof, with 
a similar cupola on the wing. Eaves and verges are simply boxed.

The original casement sashes have all been removed. Wagon doors are located at the center 
of the cow barn's north and south ends. A dozen stall doors have been added to the exterior 
of the west side.

The cow barn has a post and pier foundation with a concrete wall, three feet high, around 
the perimeter of the building. The stud wall framing consists of two by six inch milled 
timbers. Horse stalls have replaced the original stanchions which once housed eighty-four 
dairy cows.

OTHER BUILDINGS AND SITE ADAPTIONS

There are three buildings associated with the dairy farm which remain on the land 
immediately surrounding the barn:

1. House - 1915
The house is a one-story, two bedroom bungalow, approximately 25 feet square in 
plan, with a rectangular plan addition in back. The main roof is a simple 
gable sloping toward the front with rafters extended to shelter the entrance 
and vergeboards supported at each end by three oversea!ed brackets. Windows 
are double-hung with plain board surrounds.

2. Second Hay Barn - 1936
This barn provides additional hay storage space. It has a wood shingled gable 
roof and board and batten siding.

3. Garage - 1912
The garage is a one-story building now used primarily for storage. It also 
has a wood-shingled gable roof, board and batten siding, and is architecturally 
compatible with the other buildings.

The dairy farm was converted into a horse boarding and training facility beginning in 1970. 
As a result, there were several alterations to the farm site. In the northeast corner of 
the property, there are five rail-fenced jumping and riding "rings". Two are on the west 
side of the entrance drive and three on the east side. To the south of the barns, 
interspersed with haying and grazing fields, is a half-mile practice race track. An 
adjoining straight track is the west of the barns.



8. Significance

Period
prehistoric
1400-1499
1500-1599
1600-1699
1700-1799

JL 1800-1 899 
_X_1900-

Areas of Significance — Check
archeology-prehistoric
archeology-historic

X agriculture
X architecture

art
commerce X
communications

and justify below
community planning
conservation
economics
education
engineering
exploration/settlement
industry
invention

landscape architecture
law
literature
military
music
philosophy
politics/government

religion
science
sculpture
social/
humanitarian 
theater
transportation
other (specify)

Specific dates Circa 1890, 1906 Builder/Architect Unknown

Statement of Significance (in one paragraph)

First settled in the early 1860's and the scene of a fatal Indian attack in 1864, the 
Pickering Farm has been associated with the history of Issaquah, Washington, from the 
time of its earliest settlement to the present.

Bought by Territorial Governor William Pickering in 1867, and owned and operated by his 
descendants until 1975, the farm is an integral part of both the community's history and 
landscape.

The Pickering Farm is the only surviving 19th Century dairy farm in the Issaquah area 
where dairying was once one of the largest industries. The barn, built in two parts in 
1890, and 1906, is an excellent example of a turn of the century farm building accommo­ 
dating mechanical innovations and productions methods which helped make the large 
dairying industry possible in the Issaquah area.

History

In the early 1860's, William Casto and his wife, Abbie, settled on the shore of the 
southern tip of a large lake fourteen miles east of Seattle, Washington Territory and 
thirteen miles west of the foothills of the Cascade Mountains. The lake was known at 
that time by its Indian name, Squak Lake. The Casto couple, using local Indians as 
their labor force, soon became successful entrepreneurs making and selling hazelwood 
barrel hoop stock which they eventually shipped as far away as San Francisco.

While the Casto's were establishing their business, a number of other pioneers settled 
in the vicinity which soon became known as Squak Valley. By 1864, many of the Casto's 
neighbors had filed for Donation Land Claims. The Casto's, however, had not filed an 
official claim by that time, and their farm of approximately 160 acres was recorded as 
unclaimed land at the General Land Office in Olympia. On November 3, 1864,the Territorial 
University in Seattle, through its Board of Commissioners and by permission of the 
University Land Grant Act of 1854, selected the 160 acres of land on which the Casto's 
had settled.' The Casto's never had a chance to contest this action. On an evening in 
November, 1864, just after their land was selected by the University Commissioners, they 
were murdured in a bloody skirmish with local Indians seeking to avenge the murder of 
one of their chiefs by a white man.

The Casto farm was rented to one of their former neighbors, J.W. Bush. In 1867, the fifth 
Territorial Governor of Washington, William Pickering, an appointee of Abraham Lincoln, 
became interested in the land. Governor Pickering had been through Squak Valley 
previously but had not known there was land available. He had earlier bought other 
University Land on the Snoqualmie Prairie, where his son, William Pickering Jr., had 
settled and begun a farm. The Snoqualmie area, however, did not turn out to be as 
profitable as he had hoped.
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10. Geographical Data
86 acresAcreage of nominated property

Quadrangle nam* Issaquah, Washington
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Verbal boundary description and justification
The nominated property is bounded on the north by SE 56th Street, on the south by 
Interstate 90 and on the east by the Issaquah corporate limits line. The western 
boundary begins 784.80 feet east of the intersection of SE 56th Street and.212th Avenue SE.,

(See Cull tl hUa lluh 
\List all states and counties for properties overlapping state or county boundaries

state n/a code county code

state n/a code county code

11. Form Prepared By

name/title Steve Aubin, Joanne Murray

organization King County Office of Historic Preservatiornate February 8, 1980

street & number Rogm_W226, King County Courthouse 
516 Third Avenue

telephone (206)344-7503

city or town Seattle state Washington 98104

12. State Historic Preservation Officer Certification
The evaluated significance of this property within the state is: 

__ national __ state A local

As the designated State Historic Preservation Officer for the National-Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (Public Law 89- 
665), I hereby nominate this property for inclusion in the National Register and certify that it has been evaluated 
according to the criteria and procedures set forth by the Heritage Conservation and Recreation Service.

I *, 
State Historic Preservation Officer signature

title State Historic Preservation Officer date May 26, 1983
For HCRS use only

I hereby certify that this property is fIncluded

date

'eeper of the National R 

Attest: ' ::; ' '?*- E

GPO 938 835



Page

FHR-8-300 (11-78)

United States Department of the Interior 
Heritage Conservation and Recreation Service

National Register of Historic Places 
Inventory—Nomination Form

Continuation sheet____________________Item number 8

After two years of working on the Snoqualmie farm, the Governor's son was encountering 
problems with claim jumpers and gun fighting. William Pickering Sr. wrote to his friend, 
Daniel Bagley, the head of the University Board of Commissioners, on February 16, 1867, 
and inquired about the purchase of the Casto farm. On March 2, 1867, in a letter to 
his son, Governor Pickering said he had about closed the purchase of 160 acres of land in 
Squak Prairie; the Casto farm. The land that he was referring to, the southwest quarter 
of section 21 of township 24 north, range 6 east, was part of the land that would 
eventually become the Pickering Brothers Dairy Farm in Issaquah, Washington.

Governor Pickering strongly recommended to his son that he move down from the Snoqualmie 
Prairie to the Casto farm which had 40 acres of open prairie and which was much closer 
to Seattle. The exact date that William Pickering, Jr. moved to Squak Valley is not 
known, but it is believed that he had moved there during 1867, and that he lived in the 
former Casto cabin.

William Pickering Sr.'s term as Territorial Governor officially ended in December, 1866, 
but he remained in Olympia until 1867 when his replacement under President Andrew Johnson, 
George E. Cole, arrived. At that time, he retired to his farm in Squak Valley. In 
January, 1869, the ex-governor returned to Illinois to encourage his other children to 
move to Washington Territory. 4 A series of illnesses forced him to remain in Illinois 
until he died in 1873 at the age of 75.

It is obvious from the letters that William Pickering, Sr. wrote to his son during this 
period that he had developed a great personal interest and excitement about the land in 
Squak Valley. He sent William Jr. detailed maps of the land and how it should be developed, 
He also sent extensive instructions on wheat raising, barn building and irrigation for 
drainage of the swampy land. One of his letters advised William Jr. to buy some of the 
properties adjacent to his farm. 5 This advice, which William Jr. followed, eventually 
turned out to be very profitable for the descendants of the Pickerings.

William Pickering, Jr. devoted his early years in Squak Valley to his farm. Following 
his father's advice, he drained his land, built fences and started to plan the building 
of a barn. He bought 160 acres of additional land in section 28 south of the Casto 
farm. 6 This land included a hill overlooking the original prairie land that the 
Pickerings had occupied. According to current family members, William Pickering, Jr. 
built a cabin on the hill.

In the late 1860's and early 1870's, the people in the growing community of Squak Valley 
were conducting a small amount of trade with Seattle. Produce, dairy goods and products 
of the developing lumber and mining industries in the area were being used for trade. 
The growing population of Squak warranted the establishment of a post office of which 
William Pickering, Jr. became the first postmaster in 1870. He served in this capacity 
until 1875. During the early 1870's, carrying on the interest of his father in the 
developing community, he also served in a number of other public service positions. These 
included road superintendent, Grand and Petit Juror, Judge of Elections 7 and a term as 
Commissioner on the Board of County Commissioners starting in 1874. 8



FHR-8-300 (11-78)

United States Department of the Interior 
Heritage Conservation and Recreation Service

National Register off Historic Places 
Inventory—Nomination Form

Continuation sheet____________________ Item number 8___________page 2______

William Pickering, Jr. married Sevilla Wilson from Renton in 1877. They had three sons,
William, Royal and Ernest. When William Pickering, Jr. died in 1883, he left his young
family with 320 acres of land in Squak and at least 540 acres of land in Snoqualmie Prairie. 9

Sevilla Pickering remarried in 1884 to William Furnell. For many years she worked hard to 
raise her three sons. In 1888, as had been provided in the estate of William Pickering, Jr., 
she sold some of the Snoqualmie Prairie Lands and bought a residence in Seattle. The whole 
family moved there and the sons attended public schools. They returned to Squak, by then 
known as Gilman, in 1889. Seville took advantage of her property by renting part of it to 
a tenant farmer, John Reard, who sold produce to Gilman mines.

According to Royal Pickering, who was ten at the time, the family built their large barn 
after their return from Seattle in 1890. The barn originally housed 25 cows and included 
many features that were considered modern and innovative at the time. The mechanical 
hayfork lift with a system of steel cables and pulleys and a trolley running the length of 
the gable ridge was one of many types of mechanical hayforks that were being experimented 
with in barns at the time. The cupola on the roof and many windows along the sides were 
fitting of the 19th Century, when an awareness of the importance of proper ventilation to 
insure animals' health was becoming current practice.''

While Seville (Pickering) Furnell was raising her family in the 1880's and 1890's, the 
community of Gilman on Lake Sammamish was becoming incorporated into County, State and 
National networks of trade. The most important industry in the farming valleys around 
Seattle was hop growing. In Gilman, coal mining was also an important industry. The 
hops industry as well as the local coal mining industry promoted the construction of 
roads and railroads in the State of Washington. During the early 1890's however, a hop 
blight wiped out most of the crops and a world-wide economic depression brought a halt to 
coal mining. When the economy of the area started to recover in the late 1890's, the 
availability of cleared land from the former hop fields and the access to transportation 
facilities errcmiragied development of a 'dairy industry.

The inhabitants of Gilman in the late 1890's were beginning to develop a sense of local 
pride and began to refer to their village as Issaquah, a name close to the original Indian 
name from which "Squak" had been derived.

It was typical for farmers at that time to raise cows for their own milk and sell any surplus 
from their home. Robert Pickering, Royal Pickering 1 s son, has stated that this is how 
the Pickering dairy farm began."2

The dairy industry was starting to look promising and Seville (Pickering) Furnell took 
advantage of the situation by sending her sons Ernest and Royal to business schools. 
When the Pickering brothers returned home from their schools in the early 1900's, the 
land that they had inherited from their father and grandfather proved to be well suited 
for dairying pasture. They bought an additional forty acres of land in 1904, and their 
farm soon became successful. 13
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In 1906, they built a cow barn as an addition to the earlier barn built in 1890. Their 
barns now housed 130 cows which had 260 acres of open fields for grazing.'^

Other farmers in the area were also prospering from the dairy industry and soon many local 
creameries and condenseries were established. The environs of Seattle became known as a 
"milkshed" for the Seattle milk market, which consumed 15,000 gallons of milk a day by 
1914. 15

The Pickerings early on began to sell milk to a Cooperative, the Seattle Milk Producers 
Association. In 1913 and!914, the Pickering Brothers Farm was featured in two different 
publications. The Issaquah Commercial Club's "Plain Facts" in 1913 praised their five 
unit milking machine, electric lighting for house and barn and running water system.' 6 
A 1914 issue of "Northwest Horticulturalist and Dairyman" us£d the Pickerings two "modern" 
silos to epitomize the efficiency of a modern farm.''

In 1916, Ernest Pickering built a large house on the site of William Pickering, Jr.'s 
cabin on the hill overlooking the barn. The farm was incorporated in 1916 and an addi­ 
tional 50 acres of land bought in 1918 brought the total to 410 acres. Territorial Governor 
William Pickering's dream of a large profitable farm were being realized on the property 
which he had purchased. The Pickering family and dairy have since become an integral part 
of the Issaquah community and landscape.

Dairying production continued to expand in King County during the second decade of the 
Twentieth Century but leveled off during the 1920's when all available land was in 
production. The Pickerings' trading relationship with the Seattle Milk Producers Associa­ 
tion connected them with a much more stable market than some of the local creameries 
would have. This allowed them to stay in business continuously while other dairies either 
changed hands or went out of business. The impact of the depression and two world wars 
caused a further leveling off in the dairy industry and post World War II suburban develop­ 
ment contributed to the demise of many dairies. Another factor which came into play after 
World War II was strict dairy health regulations which small family farmers couldn't 
sustain.

From 1946 to 1952, the Pickerings had an average of 50 cows on their farm but were still 
going strong. In 1964, their herd had again increased to about 200 cows. lb They main­ 
tained their dairy farm longer than any other farm in Issaquah, but in the late 1960's 
were forced to sell a strip of land through the middle of their property to allow for the 
construction of Interstate 90. The frustration of having to traverse 1-90 after it was 
built was added to by the even stricter diarying regulations which made it difficult for 
anything but large dairies to make a profit.

The Pickering family sold most of the Pickering Brothers Dairy to a group of investors in 
1975. They kept a small amount of property for their family residences, including the 
large house on the hill which had been built in 1916. The barns have been used as a 
horse boarding stable since 1970, under the management of Robert Pickering,and most of 
the fields are still being used to provide hay for those stables.
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runs south 1025 feet and continues southeastward at 140 degrees for 1200 feet to its 
intersection with Interstate 90.

Boundaries of the nominated property include only the remaining undeveloped pasture land 
(significant open space) and all structures associated with the original Pickering 
Brothers Dairy Farm. The perimeter is defined by natural topographic features, a change 
in land use and public rights-of-way.


